
 

 

www.eden.gov.uk         

J Gooding 
Interim Chief Executive 

Date: 24 August 2021 
 
 
 
 

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 7QF 

Tel: 01768 817817 

Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Agenda - 2 September 2021 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be held 
at 6.45 pm on Thursday, 2 September 2021 at the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Penrith. 
 
Please note: if you would like to attend this meeting we request that you let us know 
in advance.  Please contact Democratic Services; the details are below* 
We would also request that, wherever possible, all those attending wear face 
coverings and practice social distancing and hand sanitising measures. This is due 
to the continuing health and safety concerns relating to the Covid pandemic.   
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
 

2   Minutes   
 

To sign the minutes OS/1/07/21 to OS/11/07/21 of the meeting of this Committee 
held on 15 July 2021, as a correct record of these proceedings (copies previously 
circulated). 
 

3   Declarations of Interest   
 

To receive declarations of the existence and nature of any private interest, both 
disclosable pecuniary and any other registrable interests, in any matter to be 
considered or being considered.  
 

4   Questions and Representations from Members of the Public   
 

To receive questions and Representations from Members of the Public under Rules 
10 and 11 of the Council’s Procedure Rules of the Constitution.   
 

5   Questions and Representations from Members of the Council   
 

To receive questions and representations from Members of the Council under Rules 
11 and 12 of the Council’s Procedure Rules of the Constitution. 
 

6   Question and Answer Session: Green Growth Portfolio Holder   
 

To participate in a question and answer session on the work of the Green Growth 
Portfolio Holder, Councillor Mark Rudhall.   



www.eden.gov.uk 2 

 

7   Performance Report - Quarter 1, 1 April  - 30 June 2021  (Pages 5 - 28) 
 

To consider the attached report F29/21 of the Interim Director of Resources, which: 
 

1. Provides a summary of progress against the revised corporate performance targets,   
for the period 1 April 2021 – 30 June 2021; and . 

2. Informs the Overview and Scrutiny Committee of any areas of concern or issues 
requiring attention, and the remedial actions taken. 

 
RECOMMENDED that the Quarter 1 Performance be reviewed, and any relevant 
recommendations be made to the Executive. 
 

8   Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme  (Pages 29 - 32) 
 

To consider the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s attached Work Programme for 
2021-22.  
 

9   Local Health Scrutiny  (Pages 33 - 40) 
 

To consider the attached reports from: 
 
1. The Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee held on 21 July 2021; and 
2. The Health and Wellbeing Forums held on 20 May and 22 July 2021. 

 

10   Any Other Items which the Chairman decides are urgent   
 

11   Date of Next Scheduled Meeting   
 

The date of the next scheduled meeting of this Committee be confirmed as 
Thursday 14 October 2021 at 6.45 pm..  
 

 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
J Gooding 
Interim Chief Executive 
 
*Democratic Services Contact: Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 
or telephone: 01768 212266 
 
 
Encs 
 
For Attention 
All members of the Council 

mailto:cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk


www.eden.gov.uk 3 

 
Chairman – Councillor J Raine (Conservative Group) 
Vice Chairman – Councillor D Ryland (Independent Group) 
 
Councillors 

D Banks, Independent Alliance Group 
M Hanley, Labour Group 
D Holden, Liberal Democrat Group 
D Lawson, Green Group 
E Martin, Conservative Group 
 

G Nicolson OBE, Conservative Group 
W Patterson, Independent Alliance Group 
G Simpkins, Liberal Democrat Group 
D Smith, Liberal Democrat Group 
D Wicks, Conservative Group 
 

 
Standing Deputies 

P G Baker, Liberal Democrat Group 
M Clark, Independent Group 
P Dew, Conservative Group 
M Eyles, Liberal Democrat Group 
H Fearon, Conservative Group 
 

S Lancaster, Independent Group 
A Ross, Green Group 
H Sawrey-Cookson, Independent Group 
A Todd, Conservative Group 
 

Please Note: Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 
this meeting has been advertised as a public meeting (unless stated otherwise) and 
as such could be filmed or recorded by the media or members of the public 



This page is intentionally left blank



Report No: F29/21 

Eden District Council 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 2nd September 2021 

Executive 14th September 2021 
 

Corporate Performance Report: Q1 1st April – 30th June 2021 

Portfolio: Leader 

Report from: Interim Director of Corporate Services 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To provide a summary of progress against the revised corporate performance targets,   
for the period 1 April 2021 – 30 June 2021. 

1.2  To Inform the Executive and Overview and Scrutiny Committee of any areas of 
concern or issues requiring attention and the remedial activity in place to deal with 
these. 

2 Recommendations 

 Overview and Scrutiny Committee are recommended to:- 

2.1 Review the Quarter 1 Performance and make any recommendations to the Executive. 

 

 Executive are recommended to:- 

2.2 Note the progress for Quarter 4 2020/21. 

 

3 Introduction 

3.1 The Council is committed to managing performance and risk and reviews progress 
against its corporate priorities on a quarterly basis.  Reports are presented to both 
Overview and Scrutiny and the Executive. 

3.2 This report provides the first quarter update for 2021/22 on performance in delivering 
the Council’s priorities, and corporate risk management. 

3.3 The Council’s performance management framework is reported on a quarterly basis 
and it is a retrospective report, which means it looks back on the performance of the 
previous quarter. Because of the Committee timetable there is usually a gap of a few 
weeks before the report reaches the relevant committee.  In this instance the Quarter 
1 report was completed in the last week of July to be ready for the Committees in 
September.   

3.4 We are continuing to develop and improve the reporting of Performance to fully reflect 
the corporate management framework and progress against the priorities identified in 
the corporate plan.   

3.5 Implementation of the new Performance Management software is due to start in 
September and it is hoped we can trial the new system in time for the Quarter 3 
reports. 

Page  5

Agenda Item 7



3.6 This report now includes updates on corporate risk management, which has been 
reviewed following a report from Internal Audit. This is explained in more detail in the 
Risk Management section below.    
 
 
 

4 Report Details 

 Performance Management 

4.1 The Council’s performance management framework sets out the key actions, projects 
and programmes of work that contribute to the delivery of the 2020/21 corporate plan 
and the priorities of the Council.  

4.2  Our corporate plan sets out four strategic priorities:  
 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, Safe and Secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

4.3  This report provides a summary of the Council’s performance in delivering against 
each strategic milestone. To measure performance a ‘traffic light’ system is used. 
Where performance is on or ahead of target it is rated green, where performance is 
slightly behind the target it is rated amber. A red rating indicated performance is off 
target.    

4.4 The summary performance report is set out at Appendix A and the main exceptions 
explained in the sections below. 

 Sustainable 

4.5 Summary of progress ‘traffic light’ rating for Sustainable strategic milestones; 

 23 Green (on or ahead of target) 

 5 Amber (slightly behind target) 

 0 Red (performance off target) 

4.6 The Council is committed to ensuring it is financially viable, customer focused and 
zero carbon. Co-producing economic opportunities and strategies will protect Eden’s 
working cultural landscapes and biodiversity, aiming to store more carbon than is 
produced in the District. 

4.7 For One Eden, the staffing re-structure was put on hold until the outcome of Local 
Government Re-organisation was known. During this time work was spent drafting 
responses to the staff consultation which will be shared with staff and the JCC. In 
terms of Voreda House this is in the final stages of procurement. 

4.8  The Sustainability Action Plan has been drafted and the plan is reflected in the 
milestones under the relevant strategic objectives.  

4.9 Local Government Re-organisation has been added as a strategic priority. 

  

 Healthy, Safe and Secure 

4.10 Summary of progress ‘traffic light’ rating for Healthy, Safe and Secure strategic 
milestones; 

Page  6



 12 Green (on or ahead of target) 

 0 Amber (slightly behind target) 

 0 Red (performance off target) 

4.11 The Council is committed to improving housing, both new build and existing, working 
towards self-sufficiency in energy and co-produce healthy, connected, prosperous 
communities, for all, urban and rural. 

4.12 Low Carbon Retro fit programme – after 2 successful bids the team are now preparing 
for a new bid for Home Upgrade Grant (HUG).   

4.13 There are 3 new objectives in this priority area: - Housing Strategy Action plan; Public 
Realm; and Poverty, 

 

 Connected 

4.14 Summary of progress ‘traffic light’ rating for ‘Connected’ strategic milestones; 

 5 Green (on or ahead of target) 

 0 Amber (slightly behind target) 

 0 Red (performance off target) 

4.15 The Council is committed to supporting the improvement in digital connectivity, 
transport and access to attract and support businesses, employees and families, 
connecting Eden with the global economy and knowledge industries. People are 
connected in communities with access to education, work, healthcare and leisure. 

4.16 A new priority of Community Devolution of Assets has been added, but the milestones 
have yet to be agreed.  Also Equality and Diversity has been added. 

4.17  Digital Eden remains a strategic priority, but as the Council is not the lead organisation 
we are unable to set any milestones. However we are happy to work with the DCMS if 
and when the need arises. 

 

 Creative 

4.18 Summary of progress ‘traffic light’ rating for ‘Creative’ strategic milestones 

 5 Green (on or ahead of target) 

 0 Amber (slightly behind target) 

 0 Red (performance off target) (see point 4.16) 

4.19 Support businesses to respond to national and global changes and encourage 
innovation in tourism, food and green industries and develop arts and cultural 
activities to add to town centre vibrancy, support communities and improve health and 
well-being.  

4.20 Town Centres – the Council has set up a Welcome Back fund to support the recovery 
of our town centres. We have paid out over £20,000 to help a range of projects that 
support local businesses, services and organisations in welcoming people back to 
Eden as Coronavirus restrictions are lifted.  Projects in Eden that support activity to 
bring people into the district, or improve their experience whilst they are here, have 
received Welcome Back to Eden funding. These include: 

 Support for producers’ markets in Alston 

Page  7



 Benches, hanging baskets, troughs and a carnival style event in Appleby 

 Painting key community owned  buildings to improve their appearance for visitors in 
Brough 

 Sunday cinema events, community welcome banners, public realm artwork and 
promotional campaign for businesses in Kirkby Stephen 

 Promotional video for the town of Penrith 

 Signage for the Old Courthouse Gallery and  Visitor Information Point  plus  signage 
for monthly markets in Shap 

 An update of the Ullswater area’s promotional leaflet, along with website and 
promotional video updates. 

 

4.21    Art & Culture – following a procurement exercise the contract was awarded to We Are 
Team, the first part of the commission to develop a strategy from which we will set 
milestones to monitor the performance.   

  

5.        Risk Management 

5.1 Update to be added after next ELT 

5.2 Appendix C shows the current Strategic Risk Map. 

 

6 Policy Framework 

6.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, Safe and Secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

6.2 This report meets all of the above priorities. 

7 Consultation 

7.1 No consultation was required for this Quarter 1 report. 

8 Implications 

8.1 Financial and Resources 

8.1.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

8.2 Legal 

8.2.1 The provision of functions set out in this report shall be provided in accordance with 
relevant legal requirements including those that impact on equality and diversity and 
taking account of the legal duties that the Council has towards staff. 

8.3 Human Resources 

8.3.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report. 

8.4 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Page  8



Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity Performance management has a positive impact on 
the consideration of and delivery of positive 
outcomes in terms of Equality and Diversity. 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

Performance management has a positive impact on 
the consideration of and delivery of positive 
outcomes in terms of Health, Social, Environmental 
and Economic Impact. 

Crime and Disorder Performance management has a positive impact on 
the consideration of and delivery of positive 
outcomes in terms of Crime and Disorder. 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

Performance management has a positive impact on 
the consideration of and delivery of positive 
outcomes in terms of Children and Safeguarding. 

8.5 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

Risks to public, finance 
or reputation through 
poor monitoring of 
Council Performance. 

Adverse impacts on the 
public, the Council’s 
finances or reputation. 

The performance 
management framework 
now links risk 
management with priority 
actions, programmes and 
measures. 

9 Other Options Considered 

9.1 The only other option is not to report on progress against targets set. This is not 
recommended. 

10 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

10.1 To advise Members of progress against outcomes. 

Background Papers:  

 

Appendices: Appendix A -The Corporate Plan Dashboard 

 Appendix B- Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 

 Appendix C–Strategic Risk Map 

  

Contact Officer: Amanda Yellowley, Assistant Director - Customers & 
Performance 

Page  9



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A- The Corporate Plan Dashboard 

�

RAG Summary 

 Period: Q1 (1st Apr 2021- 30th Jun 2021) 
 Progress RAG Total 

Red 
Total 

Amber 
Total 
Green 

Total 
Milestones  

Risk RAG Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 
Milestones 

 Total (Count) 0 5 45 50  Total (Count) 0 9 41 50 
 % of all Milestones 0 10 90    % of all Milestones 0 18 82   
            
Ref Connected 0 0 5 5  Connected 0 0 5 5 
O Community Devolution of Assets* 0 0 0 0  Community Devolution of Assets* 0 0 0 0 
Q Cycling 0 0 2 2  Cycling 0 0 2 2 
P Digital Eden (Community Fibre Partnership)* 0 0 0 0  Digital Eden (Community Fibre Partnership)* 0 0 0 0 
R Equality and Diversity  0 0 3 3  Equality and Diversity  0 0 3 3 

Ref Creative 0 0 5 5  Creative 0 1 4 5 
V Arts & Culture 0 0 1 1  Arts & Culture 0 0 1 1 
T Low Carbon/Greening Eden Businesses 0 0 2 2  Low Carbon/Greening Eden Businesses 0 0 2 2 
U London Road 0 0 1 1  London Road 0 1 0 1 
S Town Centres 0 0 1 1  Town Centres 0 0 1 1 

Ref Healthy, Safe and Secure 0 0 12 12  Healthy, Safe and Secure 0 2 10 12 
I New Homes 0 0 1 1  New Homes 0 0 1 1 
J Low Carbon Housing Retrofit Programme 0 0 5 5  Low Carbon Housing Retrofit Programme 0 0 5 5 
K Young People and Families  0 0 1 1  Young People and Families Strategy 0 0 1 1 
L Public Realm* 0 0 0 0  Public Realm* 0 0 0 0 
M Housing Strategy 0 0 2 2  Housing Strategy 0 2 0 2 
N Poverty 0 0 3 3  Poverty 0 0 3 3 

Ref Sustainable 0 5 23 28  Sustainable 0 6 22 28 
A Organisational Transformation 0 3 3 6  Organisational Transformation 0 3 3 6 
B Local Plan/ Planning 0 0 4 4  Local Plan/ Planning 0 3 1 4 
C Zero Carbon Strategy 0 0 4 4  Zero Carbon Strategy 0 0 4 4 
D Biodiversity 0 0 6 6  Biodiversity 0 0 6 6 
E Sustainable Waste Service 0 0 2 2  Sustainable Waste Service 0 0 2 2 
F Eden Economic Strategy 0 2 1 3  Eden Economic Strategy 0 0 3 3 
G Local Gov Reorganisation* 0 0 0 0  Local Gov Reorganisation* 0 0 0 0 
H Place Making 0 0 3 3  Place Making 0 0 3 3 
            

            
 *New milestones still to be set or outside of Council's control in terms of progress        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 P
age  11



APPENDIX A- The Corporate Plan Dashboard 

�

Key Strategic Objectives and Milestones (Q1- 1st April 2021- 31st June 2021) 

Ref: Sustainable       
A Organisational Transformation - move to one operational site; embed a Customer Experience Culture across the organisation; create a dynamic agile 

organisation, focussing on customers, service delivery, digital technology, accommodation, workforce skills and income generation 

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 Customer Services and Digital 
Combined Work streams – 
Reconfiguring the organisation 
using improvements to systems, 
skills and capacity to reflect the 
most efficient way to service 
customer demand. 

Karen 
Greenwood 

Amanda 
Yellowley(Ass 
Director 
Customers & 
Performance) / 
Ben Wright( 
Head of IT) 

on going G G My Account continues to be developed to improve digital offer to 
customers. Latest development is ‘change of address' which will be 
more efficient for Customer Services, freeing up time means the team 
can assist with Revenues & Benefits more. Next phase is Licensing, 
and Environmental Health. 

2 Constitution - updating the 
Constitution to reflect the new 
operating model for the Council 
whilst also improving its legibility 
and access. 

Karen 
Greenwood 

Lisa Tremble 
(Asst. Director 
Governance) 

Q2 G G LGA carrying out a Governance review, therefore new constitution will 
be held back from going to Council until September to allow LGA 
recommendations to be fed into the new draft. 

3 Human Resources – The 
realignment of skills and capacity to 
remodel the organisation to deliver 
the strategic intentions of the One 
Eden Programme 

Karen 
Greenwood 

Les Clark 
(Deputy Chief 
Executive) 

Q2 A A Restructure put on hold until the outcome of LGR is known 

4 Service Delivery – The approach to 
commissioned services in terms of 
current arrangements, future 
models and contract management 

Karen 
Greenwood 

Les Clark 
(Deputy Chief 
Executive) 

Q2 A A This was put on hold until the outcome of LGR was known.  See 
objective E1 - Sustainable Waste Service for progress 

5 Single Site – The purchase, 
refurbishment and relocation to a 
new corporate headquarters.   

Karen 
Greenwood 

Mike Poulter 
(One Eden 
Programme 
Manager) 

Q4 A A Sale of Mansion House has been agreed. Heads of Terms to be 
agreed. See objective H 1, 2, 3 Place making for further detail. Voreda 
House is in the final stages of procurement for the works. 

6 Communications – The overarching 
programme communication strategy 
and activities   

Karen 
Greenwood 

CLT on going G G Briefings are held as and when required, and updates are circulated to 
staff via SharePoint, email and in team meetings. 

B Local Plan/ Planning- undertake (i) a partial review of the Local Plan, to strengthen policy on two key areas: climate change and design: and (ii) a settlement study. 

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 Carry out partial review of the Local 
Plan 

Virginia 
Taylor 

Rea Psillidou 
(Planning Policy 
Manager) 

Q4 G A  A report setting out an approach for a partial review of the Local Plan 
was considered and agreed by the Executive in April 2021.   The partial 
review will focus on developing specific policies on addressing climate 
change and design. The proposal also recommended a proposal to 
undertake a Settlement Study. 

2 Commence the Local Plan Review 
Consultation 

Virginia 
Taylor 

Rea Psillidou 
(Planning Policy 
Manager) 

Q1 G G Staff consultation carried out, for which we received a lot of responses. 
ADs have been working through these & we will give feedback to staff. 
 
 

P
age  12



APPENDIX A- The Corporate Plan Dashboard 

�

3 Carry out Viability Study Virginia 
Taylor 

Rea Psillidou 
(Planning Policy 
Manager) 

Q4 G A   

4 Undertake Settlement Study Virginia 
Taylor 

Rea Psillidou 
(Planning Policy 
Manager) 

Q4 G A   

C Zero Carbon Strategy - deliver the Zero Carbon Eden District Council Strategy & Action Plan 2020-2023, making progress on reducing the Council’s carbon 
footprint to zero by 2030, by improving energy use and biodiversity in EDC estate, promoting community projects in district e.g. community energy schemes. 

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify blockages/challenges/ 
achievements 

1 Final strategy and action plan 
agreed by Executive  

Mark Rudhall Laura Cadman 
(Assistant 
Director - 
Delivery) 

 Q2    G   G  Strategy and Action plan has been drafted for consideration by the 
members Working Group prior to Executive.  

2 Provide accredited Carbon Literacy 
Training to staff and Members  

Mark Rudhall Laura Cadman 
(Assistant 
Director - 
Delivery) 

 Q4    G   G  Second round of training spring 2021 - 15 staff & 10 members received 
and completed the full accredited training. 

3 Identify individually the carbon 
footprint of each buildings own / 
managed by EDC and try to find 
mitigation and adaptation scenario 
to reduce their carbon emissions  

Mark Rudhall Laura Cadman 
(Assistant 
Director - 
Delivery) 

 Q3    G   G  Work as started on a Carbon management plan for each buildings 
owned by EDC. It needs the involvement of others officer that could 
help with the potential buildings retrofit work and updates.  

4 Reduce paper printing cross 
departmentally, Continue recycling 
redundant IT equipment, and find 
ways to recycling/reuse other 
equipment  

Mark Rudhall Laura Cadman 
(Assistant 
Director - 
Delivery) 

 Q4    G   G  Since the sustainability team has started, no one had the opportunity to 
start working on reducing printing paper usage as most of the officers 
are located at home (Covid-19).  
Officers have been engaging with the Waste Carbon Reduction Group 
to find solution and to improve our waste management and recycling 
across the Eden district.  

D Biodiversity – manage our own land sustainably, collaborate with external bodies, develop and deliver integrated protection and enhancement of natural habitats 
within Eden ecosystems.  

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify blockages/challenges/ 
achievements 

1 Asses areas of council land suitable 
for biodiversity enhancement 
- Introduce wildflowers beds 
Plant trees 

Mark Rudhall Laura Cadman 
(Assistant 
Director - 
Delivery) 

Q3  G G Officers have started to look in more detail on what could be achieved 
on the land management by EDC. 

2 Promote the recovery of priority 
habitats (uplands, woodland, 
meadow and wetlands by working 
with local communities, partners 
and Stakeholders 

Mark Rudhall Laura Cadman 
(Assistant 
Director - 
Delivery) 

Q2  G G Partnership in place with Eden River Trust for the green recovery 
funding. 
Officers have identified different organisations to work in partnership to 
promote and enhance biodiversity and natural habitats across Eden. 

3 Increase woodland coverage 
working with landowners, 
community groups, volunteers and 
other partners 

Mark Rudhall Laura Cadman 
(Assistant 
Director - 
Delivery) 

Q4  G G No progress to date.  Plans are in place to begin with existing 
partnerships. 

P
age  13



APPENDIX A- The Corporate Plan Dashboard 

�

4 Increase positive management and 
protect existing woodland and 
treescapes (incl Veteran Trees, 
hedges etc.). Build partnerships 
with Cumbria Woodlands, 
Woodland Trust & private 
landowners 

Mark Rudhall Laura Cadman 
(Assistant 
Director - 
Delivery) 

Q4 G G Officers have engaged with Cumbria woodlands and woodland trust to 
explore what could be achieved - discussions are ongoing 

5 Continue to support Eden Rivers 
Trust, landowners and private 
interests such as United Utilities in 
Eden SSSI catchment 
management. Upper Lune river 
management with the YDNP & 
Friends of the Lakes, through the 
Westmorland Dales project 

Mark Rudhall Laura Cadman 
(Assistant 
Director - 
Delivery) 

Q3  G G Partnership with Eden River Trust has been developed for the green 
recovery funding and discussions underway for future projects.  

6 Promote Farming, and the benefits 
ecosystem service delivery of public 
goods through government 
schemes and NFU, CLBA, Farm 
Tenant Association, UoC, 
Westmorland Agricultural Society 
and The Farmer Network 

Mark Rudhall Laura Cadman 
(Assistant 
Director - 
Delivery) 

Q3  G G Officers are working on a farming tool kit to measure the carbon 
footprint related to the farmer activities.  

E Sustainable waste service-  To develop a new waste and recycling service which  is compliant with the government's waste and resource strategy, and aims to 
reduce the service’s carbon footprint and remove plastic waste wherever possible 

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Quarter  Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify blockages/challenges/ 
achievements 

1 Report to Executive and Council to 
agree delivery vehicle for waste, 
recycling and street cleaning 
services from 2022. 

Michael 
Tonkin 

Les Clark 
(Deputy Chief 
Executive) 

Q2/3 G G Report to Exec & Council July 2021 

2 Report to Executive and Council 
and agree service design and 
collection regime for services from 
2022 

Michael 
Tonkin 

Les Clark 
(Deputy Chief 
Executive) 

Q4 G G Awaiting outcome of consultation on national resources and waste 
strategy expected Q4 21/22 

F Eden Economic Strategy- deliver a work plan and strategy to support growth, business development and higher wages in a post COVID, 21st Century Rural 
economy  
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 Stakeholder Consultation in 
conjunction with the Cumbria LEP 

Mary 
Robinson 

Oliver 
Shimell/Fergus 
McMorrow (Asst. 
Director 
Development) 

Q1 A G The LEP have agreed to assist EDC with gathering background 
information to develop a high level Economic Strategy. Review is 
underway. This will cover the period 2021 to 2023. Progress has been 
somewhat hampered by staff dealing with various Government grants 
which have taken priority to be paid to support the local economy.  

2 Draft Strategy produced for 
consideration  

Mary 
Robinson 

Oliver 
Shimell/Fergus 
McMorrow(Asst. 
Director 
Development) 

Q2 A G A draft Economic Strategy which will focus on high level principles and 
defined actions will be produced in a draft format for consideration in 
September 2021. 

P
age  14



APPENDIX A- The Corporate Plan Dashboard 

�

3 Final Strategy agreed by Members Mary 
Robinson 

Oliver 
Shimell/Fergus 
McMorrow (Asst. 
Director 
Development) 

Q3 G G Draft produced in September for comments, consideration and adoption 
of final draft in quarter 3.  

G Local Government Re-organisation- Plan and negotiate where possible for improved services, resident engagement and employment. Work with central and 
local Government and other agencies to deliver all required process and changes efficiently and in good order 

 Milestone Portfolio 
Holder 

Lead officer Target Progress 
RAG 

Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 NEW           Once the outcome of the LG Review is known we will develop 
milestones. 

H Place Making- sell Mansion House & develop Town Hall site to enhance the public realm, and provision of hotel, leisure & cultural facilities 

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 Completion of Feasibility Study for 
Town Hall and Report reviewed by 
Members 

Karen 
Greenwood 

Oliver 
Shimell/Fergus 
McMorrow (Asst. 
Director 
Development) 

Q2 G G Feasibility study nearing completion and contains a number of potential 
options. Further work is being carried out on a detailed preferred option.  

2 Town Hall - seek Member 
agreement on the Feasibility Study, 
agree which option to pursue and 
draft timetable of future activities.  

Karen 
Greenwood 

Oliver 
Shimell/Fergus 
McMorrow (Asst. 
Director 
Development) 

Q3 G G New Milestone inserted. 

3 Disposal of Mansion House Karen 
Greenwood 

Les Clark 
(Deputy Chief 
Executive) 

Q4  G G Offer has been received subject to a number of conditions being met 
and Council have provided delegated authority for officers to negotiate 
the potential sale of the building 

 

Healthy, Safe & Secure    
  

I New Homes- deliver a pilot new build sustainable affordable housing scheme, which is both environmentally sound and capable of being replicated within a 
reasonable cost envelope; use the learning gained to work in partnership with Homes England and other agencies to deliver the wider roll out of similar schemes to 
meet local needs  
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 Members to agree site, number of 
homes and new timetable for the 
project if the initiative is found 
feasible.  

Mark Rudhall Oliver 
Shimell/fergus 
McMorrow (Asst. 
Director 
Development) 

Q2 G G Sites have been identified along with options for number of houses. 
Members will need to consider the information and set out their 
preferred way forwards, along with a new timetable.  

 

P
age  15



APPENDIX A- The Corporate Plan Dashboard 

�

J Low Carbon Housing Retro-fit Programme-  deliver the existing programme, secure new funding where possible and assist other authorities with Green Homes 
Grant LAD schemes, ensuring that resources are available to make maximum use of government grants to tackle the triple challenges of low carbon, health and 
wellbeing and fuel poverty in the housing sector 

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 Delivery, in partnership with 
external key partner, the outcomes 
of Phases 1 a and b of the LAD 
Green Home Grant Scheme 

Judith 
Derbyshire 

Robert Docherty 
(Asst. Director 
Communities) 

Q2 G G Throughout April and May, 20 eligible Green Home Grant applications 
have been received via Phase 1 and 20 improvement measures have 
been installed. Full up to date figures for Q1 will not be received from 
Eon until the end of July, but it is likely these figures will increase. Over 
the previous 9 months of Phase 1 there have been 52 active cases 
processed and only 8 exits. Exits are where applications are unable to 
be taken forward due to reasons such as the properties being 
unsuitable for the desired measures or are located within conservation 
areas 

2 To finalise partnership working with 
other Cumbrian Councils in the 
funding and implementation of the 
Phase 2 of the LAD Green Homes 
Grant Scheme. To act as 
Accountable Body on behalf of 
other Cumbrian districts on delivery 
of the scheme. 

Judith 
Derbyshire 

Robert Docherty 
(Asst. Director 
Communities) 

Q2 G G Development of partnership with other Cumbrian districts. Service 
Delivery Plan for Phase 2 in development 

3 To make a bid submission to BEIS 
for HUG and Phase 3 of the LAD 
Green Homes Grant Scheme. 

Judith 
Derbyshire 

Robert Docherty 
(Asst. Director 
Communities) 

Q2 G G Expression of interest submitted to BEIS for Phase 3 and HUG (Home 
Upgrade Grant) 

4 To implement and deliver on first 
outcomes of HUG and Phase 3 of 
the LAD Green Homes Grant 
Scheme 

Judith 
Derbyshire 

Robert Docherty 
(Asst. Director 
Communities) 

Q4  G G 

  

5 To develop and implement resource 
requirements, within structure of the 
HIA, utilising external funding to 
deliver on Green Homes Grant 
Schemes and to maximise uptake 
of future potential opportunities 

Judith 
Derbyshire 

Robert Docherty 
(Asst. Director 
Communities) 

Q2 G G Resourcing proposal developed and approval to be sought 

K Young People & Families  - to be active members of the Eden Children and Families Locality working group  with the aim to retain and attract a working age 
population to overcome the increasing demographic imbalance, improve health & wellbeing, and to provide our young people with education, training, employment 
opportunities and good affordable housing 

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 Work with partners on the Eden 
Locality Children & Families 
Partnership to develop an action 
plan for the Eden locality  

Lissie Sharp Amanda 
Yellowley (Asst. 
Director 
Customers and 
Performance) 

Q2-Q4 G G The Eden Apprenticeship scheme continues to run. There is little 
resource to currently assign to promote or develop the Scheme due to 
officers dealing with Covid activity.  Work has been undertaken in 
partnership with the Department of Work and Pensions to submit a bid 
for the creation of an Eden Youth Hub to provide specialist advice and 
support for young people. The Council has been notified that the bid 
was successful and as such assisted with a launch event.  

P
age  16



APPENDIX A- The Corporate Plan Dashboard 

�

L Public Realm- support communities to improve their local open spaces, allotments and play areas for active leisure, safe outdoor play and improved biodiversity 
 
 
  
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 NEW -Milestones & targets to be 
developed and agreed 

Lissie Sharp Robert Docherty 
(Asst. Director 
Communities) 

Q2     Milestones & targets to be developed and agreed 

M Housing Strategy- we will develop an action plan to deliver our new housing strategy, setting out our vision for affordable decent homes for our local people and 
help us retain our young people and families 

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 Housing Strategy Action Plan 
Created 

Judith 
Derbyshire 

Robert Docherty 
(Asst. Director 
Communities) 

Q3  G A Strategy finalised for Council approval. Draft of Action plan to be 
produced & discussed with housing & health portfolio holder. 
Resourcing may be an issue 

2 Housing Strategy Action Plan 
reviewed and Approved by Portfolio 
Holder 

Judith 
Derbyshire 

Robert Docherty 
(Asst. Director 
Communities) 

Q4  G A 

N Poverty- We will work across the Council to ensure that all residents struggling due to financial inequalities have access to advice and assistance. Through this 
work the long term aim is to reduce levels of poverty across the district.  

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 Collect applicable data to measure 
levels of poverty within Eden 

Lissie 
Sharpe 

Amanda 
Yellowley (Asst. 
Director 
Customers and 
Performance) 

Q2  G G Data sources identified and data has been collected for Eden. The data 
collected will be reviewed in the next quarter and updated as the data 
sources allow 

2 Anti-Poverty Objectives agreed  Lissie 
Sharpe 

Amanda 
Yellowley (Asst. 
Director 
Customers and 
Performance) 

Q3  G G Draft objectives have been sent to Member Working Group for 
comments 

3 Anti- Poverty Actions agreed Lissie 
Sharpe 

Amanda 
Yellowley (Asst. 
Director 
Customers and 
Performance) 

Q4  G G Draft actions in line with the draft objectives have been sent to Member 
Working Group for comments/input 

 

 

P
age  17



APPENDIX A- The Corporate Plan Dashboard 

	

 

Connected      

O Community Devolution of Assets-  work with CALC, parishes and others to progress the mutually agreed transfer of assets to parish and town councils in a 
timely and cost-effective manner 

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 New Milestones Required Lissie Sharp Laura Cadman 
(Assistant 
Director - 
Delivery) 

Q2     Milestones & targets to be developed and agreed 

P Digital Eden- Support the work of partners, agencies and the Department of Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) to deliver broadband and improved digital signal to all 
parts of Eden district. 

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1   Mary 
Robinson 

  N/A     The Council is not the lead organisation for this objective and as such 
has limited control over the delivery of the project 

Q Cycling- To promote cycling in the District through improving safe storage facilities in towns; be an active member of the County cycling strategy and to support the 
work of partners in developing better cycle routes.  

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 Work with Cumbria County Council to 
review County Cycling Strategy 

Lissie Sharp Laura Cadman 
(Assistant Director 
- Delivery) 

Q4  G G Officers have engagement with the Penrith LCWIP stakeholder workshop to 
input into the development of a coherent list of cycling and walking investment 
priorities. Officer are looking at ways to progress this work with CC and 
partners. 

2 Continue working with Penrith Parking 
and Movement Partnership to deliver 
cycling improvements 

Lissie Sharp Laura Cadman 
(Assistant Director 
- Delivery) 

Q4  G G Officers have engagement with the Penrith LCWIP stakeholder workshop to 
input into the development of a coherent list of cycling and walking investment 
priorities. Officer are looking at ways to progress this work with CC and 
partners. 

R Equality & Diversity- carry out a review of our current internal practices, and to develop new policy and staff training with outside consultants. 

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 Updated Equality Training to be 
given to staff and Members (by 
External Consultants IODA) 

Lissie Sharp Amanda 
Yellowley (Asst. 
Director 
Customers and 
Performance) 

Q4  G G Training to be arranged in conjunction with HR and Member Services. 
Already in process and received proposal from training providers. CLT 
to give final approval.  

2 Initial review of existing documents 
and practices 

Lissie Sharp Amanda 
Yellowley (Asst. 
Director 
Customers and 
Performance) 

Q3  G G Working with other Cumbrian Authorities we are reviewing best practice 
regarding EIA documents. Initial internal review complete & carrying out 
self-appraisal using LGA Equality & Diversity framework 

3 Review of findings from internal review. 
Decision made how to effectively 
resource progression of Equality and 
Diversity work (to include update of 
Council's Equality Objectives).   

Lissie Sharp Amanda Yellowley 
(Asst. Director 
Customers and 
Performance) 

Q4  G G 

 

P
age  18



APPENDIX A- The Corporate Plan Dashboard 




 

Creative   
 

S Town Centres-  Work with partners, including Borderlands, prepare plans for funding bids to reinvent our town centres for the future, to increase investment, 
promote their uniqueness and explore creative ways to bring empty units and historic buildings back into use. 

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 Develop and deliver the Council's 
own Welcome Back Fund 

Mary 
Robinson 

Oliver 
Shimell/Fergus 
McMorrow (Asst. 
Director 
Development) 

Q2 G G Welcome back fund set up with the Council's own finances to support 
town centre recovery and development.  

T Low Carbon/Greening Eden Businesses - To improve the financial and environmental sustainability of local businesses by adopting an EDC First procurement 
policy, and helping local businesses reduce their carbon foot print 

 
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 Continue to promote and facilitate 
the undertaking of local business 
carbon audits and the Greening 
Eden Businesses Grant Scheme 

Mark Rudhall Laura Cadman 
(Assistant 
Director - 
Delivery) 

Ongoing G G An external company has been appointed to begin delivering this 
project (CBEN). This quarter 5 carbon audits have been completed and 
6 are in progress. No grants have been awarded yet as the Grant Panel 
is still to be finalised, but 2 applications have been received. The next 
meeting regarding the Grant Panel set up is scheduled for Q2 (12th 
August) 

2 Procure web portal Mark Rudhall Oliver Shimell 
(Asst. Director 
Development) 

Q4 G G 
 

U London Road- creation of zero carbon commercial/industrial units 
 

Milestone Portfolio 
Holder 

Lead officer Target Progress 
RAG 

Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 Allocate capital funding 21/22 
MTFP 

Mary 
Robinson 

Laura Cadman 
(Assistant 
Director - 
Delivery) 

Q2 G A Not able to progress until money allocated in MTFP 

V Arts & Culture- develop and deliver an Arts & Culture Programme to enhance the creative and cultural lives of all through greater community participation in Arts 
and Culture activity throughout the District - Sustaining healthy communities and establishing Eden as a great place for young people to live, create enterprises to 
thrive, and visitors to enjoy.  
Milestone Portfolio 

Holder 
Lead officer Target Progress 

RAG 
Risk 
RAG 

Progress in previous Quarter- specify 
blockages/challenges/achievements 

1 Develop Arts programme with new 
consultants 

Virginia 
Taylor 

Robert Docherty 
(Asst. Director 
Communities) 

Q2 G G New contract has commenced, programme & milestones to be agreed. 

 

P
age  19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B- Corporate Key Performance Indicators 

�

Eden District Council – Corporate KPIs 

Corporate KPIs are used to monitor the day to day business of the Council, and are part of the service plans. Some teams will have 

more KPIs to help managers monitor the operational work of their teams. 

Ref KPI 20/21 actual 21/22 Q1 21/22 
Q2 

21/22 
Q3 

21/22 
Q4 

Targe
t 

Bench
mark 

Trend 
From 

previous 
Q 

Owner 

Sustainable 
1 Missed refuse collections after 24 hours (%) 

26,980 properties 
 

0 0    <3   Laura 
Cadman 

2 Building Control - % of applications 
determined within 8 weeks 

52% 
20/21 
Average 

39%    100   Laura 
Cadman 

3 Building Control - % of site inspections 
carried out on agreed date 

99% 
20/21 
Average 

99%    100   Laura 
Cadman 

5 Council Tax collected (% of amount owed) 
Cumulative 

97.7 
Previous 
Q1 figure: 
28.8% 
 

29.7%    99   Amanda 
Yellowley  

6 % of Business Rates due in year collected 
in year 
Cumulative 

93.7 
Previous 
Q1 figure: 
29.8% 
 

17.4%    98   Amanda 
Yellowley 

7 Number of days to process new claims for 
HB/CTR  

17 
*20/21 
Average 

16    23   Amanda 
Yellowley 

8 Number of days to process change of 
circumstances for HB/CTR claims 

10* 
*20/21 
Average 

11    10   Amanda 
Yellowley P

age  21



Appendix B- Corporate Key Performance Indicators 

�

9 % of total working days lost to sickness 
absence 
 

2.12% 2.72%    <2.8% 
 
(7.0) 

 

  Linzi Gate 

10 Turnover (% of workforce who have left the 
Organisation) 

9.7% 3.2%    <10%   Linzi Gate 
 

Healthy, Safe & Secure 

11 Successful homeless prevention outcomes 
of cases closed in Quarter (number and 
%).* 
 
*This refers to the Section195 prevention 
duty owed under Housing Act 1996 - 
Housing Authorities must work with people 
who are threatened with homelessness 
within 56 days to help prevent them from 
becoming homelessness 
 

70% 50% 
(7) 

   >65%  
 
(Great
er than 
North 
West 
2019/2
0 
averag
e) 

61.2% 
 
 
(North 
West 
2019/20 
average
) 

 Robert 
Docherty 

12 Successful homeless relief outcomes of 
cases closed in Quarter (number and %)** 
 
**This refers to the Section 189B relief duty 
owed under Housing Act 1996 – Housing 
Authorities must take reasonable steps to 
help secure accommodation for any eligible 
person who is homeless. 
 

74% 53% 
(8) 

   >55%  
 
(Great
er than 
North 
West 
2019/2
0 
averag
e) 

44.7% 
 

 
(North 
West 
2019/20 
average
) 

 Robert 
Docherty 

13 Number of households to whom a full 
homelessness duty is owed. Quarterly *** 
 
***This refers to the main housing duty 
owed under Section 193(2) Housing Act 
1996 - The applicant has been owed a relief 
duty, but 56 days has passed and 
alternative accommodation has not been 

3 1    <15 
 
(Less 
than 
Cumbr
ia 
2020/2
1 

15 
 
(Cumbri
an 
2020/21 
average
) 

 Robert 
Docherty 

P
age  22



Appendix B- Corporate Key Performance Indicators 

�

secured (the applicant is in priority need 
and not homeless intentionally) 

averag
e) 

14 Number of Households in Temporary 
Accommodation 

NEW 11       Robert 
Docherty 

15 Total number of days in Temporary 
Accommodation 

NEW 418       Robert 
Docherty 

16 Number of Households accessing B&B NEW 11       Robert 
Docherty 

17 Total number nights in B&B NEW 121       Robert 
Docherty 

18 Minor Planning applications determined 
within 8 weeks (%)* 
 
*KPI reported on Quarterly to Central 
Government 

92% 
(192/208) 

88% 
(59/67) 

   92%   Olivier 
Shimell 

19 Major Planning applications determined 
within 13 weeks (%)* 
 
*KPI reported on Quarterly to Central 
Government 

97.2% 
(35/36) 

75% (6/8)    100%   Olivier 
Shimell 

20 Number of successful Green Homes Grant 
Applications (Phase 1 only)* 
 
*Please note Q1 figures only cover the months 
of April and May as the figures for June will not 
be available until the start of Q2. Q1 figures will 
be updated in time for the Q2 reporting 

NEW 20       Robert 
Docherty 

21 Number of installed measures via the 
Green Homes Grant (Phase 1 only)* 
 
*Please note Q1 figures only cover the months 
of April and May as the figures for June will not 
be available until the start of Q2. Q1 figures will 
be updated in time for the Q2 reporting 

NEW 20       Robert 
Docherty 

P
age  23



Appendix B- Corporate Key Performance Indicators 

�

22 % of Disabled Facilities Grants dealt with by 
the Home Improvement Agency within 150 
days enquiry to approval 

NEW 100%    95%   Robert 
Docherty 

Connected  
23 No of website visitors 

(Unique Visitors) 
 
 

637,897* 
*2020/21 
Total 
visitors 

155,725       Amanda 
Yellowley 

24 No of customers registered with My 
Account (Running total and New My 
Account Customers) 

2,050 Total: 
2,635 
New 
Accounts: 
585 

   5000   Amanda 
Yellowley 

25 No of enquires dealt with to completion by 
Customer Service Centre (number & %) 

85.3% 86.7%    80%   Amanda 
Yellowley 

Creative 

26 Number of Greening Eden Businesses 
Grants Awarded (Number and Value) 
Cumulative 

NEW Grant 
panel still 
to be set 
up 

      Laura 
Cadman 

27 Number of Business Carbon Audits 
completed 

NEW 5       Laura 
Cadman 

 

Comment:- 

• Ref number 9:  

o The calculation for the determining the % of total days lost to sickness is as follows; 

Total Days Lost to Sickness / Total Available working days X 100 

• Ref number 23: 

o Unique visitors are individual website users who view the website each month. The figure shown is the total number 

of unique visitors for the quarter 

P
age  24



Appendix B- Corporate Key Performance Indicators 

�

• Ref number 6: 

o The % of Business Rates collected has reduced compared to the same period last fiscal year (29.8%) as the 100% 

rate relief for retail, leisure and hospitality businesses were receiving, has either ended or been reduced to 66%. 

Subsequently the collectable debit has increased significantly 

 

• Ref number 20 (Green Homes Grant): 

o Over the previous 9 month period of Eden’s Green Homes Grant Phase 1 (October 2020-June 2021) There have 

been 52 active cases processed, 14 completions and 8 exits. Exits are where applications are unable to be taken 

forward. Exits include reasons such as, properties being unsuitable to accommodate the measures requested, are 

listed buildings or properties that are located within Conservation Areas.   

P
age  25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C- Strategic Risk Map 

�

Eden District Council   V5 AY 28/07/2021       

Project Strategic Risk Map           

Owner Extended Leadership Team           

Date  28th July 2021 
          

 Residual Risk  Mitigated Risk 

Ref 
Service 

area 
Risk 

owner Risk Description Likelihood Impact 
Risk 
score Action Status Likelihood Impact 

Risk 
score Further action 

1 Corporate Les 
Clark 

A major incident involving 
significant harm or potential 
harm to individuals, 
businesses and 
communities. 

2 5 10 The Council has a lead role in 
Emergency Planning; the Council 
has an Emergency Response Plan 
and has engaged the County 
Council's Resilience Direct service. 
The Council participates in other 
County wide exercises and 
coordination bodies. 

Active 2 4 8 The Appleby Fair - coordinated through 
Multi Agency Strategic Coordinating 
Group. Post event consultation and 
lessons learned are a key element of 
each annual exercise. There is a 
dedicated environmental health team to 
ensure compliance with legal duties 
and reduce the risk of public health 
incidents. 

2 Corporate Les 
Clark 

A major incident or service 
failure which effect the 
services provided by the 
Council to our Council Tax 
payers, including but not 
limited to IT failure; 3rd 
party service provider goes 
into administration; fire in a 
Council building. 

2 5 10 The Council has a Business 
Continuity Plan, which is reviewed 
on a regular basis.  Where required 
we set up Business Continuity 
groups (e.g. pandemic) to ensure 
services are delivered. 

Active 2 3 6 Property services team carries our 
regular inspections of council owned 
building. Close monitoring of contracts. 
Regular internal audits. 

3 Corporate Les 
Clark 

Having a significant 
safeguarding issue in the 
District where the Council 
could have had a role in 
prevention. 

2 5 10 The Council has a number of 
services where staff interact with 
vulnerable adults and children. 
Training has been provided to 
ensure staff are aware of signs and 
referral routes where there are 
concerns. 

Active 2 4 8 Corporate training and risk assessment 
needs to be re-done. 

4 ELT Les 
Clark 

Not having sufficient 
internal capacity to deliver 
corporate transformation 

3 3 9 Phase 1 is now complete, and a full 
staff consultation is being 
undertaken.   

Active 2 3 6 Some posts within the revised 
management structure are filled on an 
interim basis, work is ongoing to review 
these. 

5 IT Ben 
Wright 
Head 
of IT 

Failure of IT business 
critical systems or 
unauthorised access is 
gained to our Information 
and Technology (I&T) 
infrastructure. 

3 5 15 The Council uses a shared service 
with SLDC to provide IT. Data is 
backed up and stored off site to 
ensure data from key systems could 
be recovered without significant loss. 

Active 2 4 8 Although arrangements are in place, 
the increased reliance on IT and the 
increased sophistication of cybercrime 
means this risk is ever changing and 
requires constant review. 

6 Finance Paul 
Sutton 

Having an unsustainable 
budget and running out of 
reserves 

3 4 12 There is a Medium Term Financial 
Planning process to capture and 
quantify the medium term financial 
position. The last version of the plan 
(Feb 2019) indicates reserves being 
significantly depleted over the MTFP 
period. 

Active 2 3 6 The need to address the financial 
position is recognised corporately and 
work is ongoing to develop savings 
proposals, particularly through the 
transformation programme. These 
should be reflected in the next iteration 
of the MTFP. 

   

 
 
 
         

 P
age  27



APPENDIX C- Strategic Risk Map 

�

Scoring key:          

Likelihood Impact           

5 5 Catastrophic          

4 4 Major          

3 3 Moderate          

2 2 Minor          

1 1 Negligible          

                   

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 5 10 15 20 25         

4 8 12 16 20         

3 6 9 12 15         

2 4 6 8 10         

1 2 3 4 1         

  1 2 3 4 5         

  Impact           

     

P
age  28



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2021-22       

The Scrutiny Work Plans are updated at every Scrutiny meeting and contain a list of upcoming agenda items and possible future agenda items.  

Suggestions for agenda items are welcomed from any non-Executive Councillor.  If you would like to suggest an agenda item, please contact 

the Chairman and lead officer Overview and Scrutiny outlining your suggestion and why you feel it would be a useful agenda item.   

Contact scrutiny@eden.gov.uk 

 

 

Item Action/Scrutiny Function Report Author Portfolio Actions required before next 
Committee 

15 July 2021 

Q4 Performance 
Management Update 

Performance 
Management 

Interim Director 
Resources 

Leader  

Scrutiny Work Programme 
2021-22 Update 

Policy Development and 
Review 

Chairman of Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 

All  

Delivery of Waste and 
Recycling Collection 
Services (method of 
delivery) 

Committee 
Recommendation to 
Executive 

Deputy Chief Executive Services Recommendation Report to 
Executive 

Devolution of Assets to 
Town and Parish Councils 

Establish method for 
policy review (Task and 
Finish Group) 

Deputy Chief Executive Services Scoping Statement (Dem 
Services) 
Agree T&F Group Membership. 
Commencement of T&F Work 

 

 

  P
age  29

A
genda Item

 8

file:///C:/Users/Les.Clark/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/E9RTD00W/scrutiny@eden.gov.uk


 

Item Action/Scrutiny Function Report Author Portfolio Actions required before next 
Committee 

2 September 2021 
Q1 Performance Management 
Update 

Performance Management Interim Director Resources Leader  

Scrutiny Work Programme 
2021-22 Update 

Policy Development and 
Review 

Chairman of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

All  

Discussion with Portfolio 
Holder on their areas of work 

Scrutiny of Decision 
Making/Policy Development 
and Review 

N/A Green Growth: 
Cllr M Rudhall 

 

14 October 2021 
Scrutiny Work Programme 
2021-22 Update 

Policy Development and 
Review 

Chairman of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

All  

Discussion with Portfolio 
Holder on their areas of work 

Scrutiny of Decision 
Making/Policy Development 
and Review 

N/A Housing and 
Health? 

 

Fuel Poverty and Warmer 
Homes – update on service 
delivery (agreed at February 
2021 O&S Committee – 
minute OSc/35/021/21 refers 

Fuel Poverty and Warmer 
Homes – update on service 
delivery (agreed at February 
2021 O&S Committee – 
minute OSc/35/021/21 
refers 

AD Communities Housing and 
Health 

 

Devolution of Assets to Town 
and Parish Councils 

T&F Group Progress report  T&F Group/Democratic 
Services 

Services T&F work  

  

P
age  30



Item Action/Scrutiny Function Report Author Portfolio Actions required before next 
Committee 

2 December 2021 
Q2 Performance Management 
Update 

Performance Management Interim Director Resources Leader  

Scrutiny Work Programme 
2021-22 Update 

Policy Development and 
Review 

Chairman of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

All  

Discussion with Portfolio 
Holder on their areas of work 

Scrutiny of Decision 
Making/Policy Development 
and Review 

N/A To be decided  

Devolution of Assets to Town 
and Parish Councils 

T&F Final Report and 
Committee recommendation 
to executive  

T&F Group/Democratic 
Services 

Services Final Report to Executive 

13 January 2022 
Scrutiny Work Programme 
2021-22 Update 

Policy Development and 
Review 

Chairman of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

All  

Discussion with Portfolio 
Holder on their areas of work 

Scrutiny of Decision Making/ 
Policy Development and 
Review 

N/A To be decided  

Climate Crisis and Carbon-
Neutral Performance 

Performance 
Management/Policy 
Development and 
Review/T&F Work 

AD Delivery Green Growth Scoping Statement (Dem Services) 
Agree T&F Group Membership. 
Commencement of T&F Work 

Review of Allocation of 
Section 106 funds (suggested 
by Cllr Nicholson) 

Performance 
Management/T&F Work 

AD Development / AD 
Communities 

Leader / Health 
and Housing 

Scoping Statement (Dem Services) 
Agree T&F Group Membership. 
Commencement of T&F Work 

Delivery of Waste and 
Recycling Collection Services 
(configuration of services) 

Establish method for 
policy/service review (Task 
and Finish Group) 

Deputy Chief Executive Services Scoping Statement (Dem Services). 
Commencement of T&F Work 
(timing depending on Government 
release of statutory Guidance) 

 

 

P
age  31



Item Action/Scrutiny Function Report Author Portfolio Actions required before next 
Committee 

Feb / March 2022 – possible requirement to hold an extraordinary meeting? 

Delivery of Waste and 
Recycling Collection 
Services (configuration of 
services) 

Committee 
Recommendation to 
Executive 

Deputy Chief Executive Services Recommendation Report to 
Executive 

7 April 2022 

Q3 Performance 
Management Update 

Performance 
Management 

Interim Director 
Resources 

Leader  

Scrutiny Work Programme 
2021-22 Update 

Policy Development and 
Review 

Chairman of Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 

All  

Discussion with Portfolio 
Holder on their areas of 
work 

Scrutiny of Decision 
Making/Policy 
Development and Review 

N/A To be decided  

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Annual Report 

Annual Reporting Chairman of O&S 
Committee 

  

Review of Allocation of 
Section 106 funds 
(suggested by Cllr 
Nicholson) 

Performance 
Management/T&F Work. 
Final Committee Report 
and Recommendation to 
Executive 

AD Development Leader / Health 
and Housing 

Recommendation Report to 
Executive 

Climate Crisis and Carbon-
Neutral Performance 

Performance 
Management/Policy 
Development and 
Review/T&F Progress 
Report to Committee 

 Green Growth Continuation of T&F Work 

Other Possible Work 

Heart of Cumbria 
 

P
age  32



Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 21st July 2021. 



Chair: Carrie McCarron-Holmes, 

Present: Councillors: Phil Dew, Mark Wilson, Chris Whiteside, Neil Hughes, John Kane, A 
Semple, V. Hughes, D Shepherd, T Allison, M. Hanley. 



Report by Michael Hanley. 




We discussed the future workplan.
1.


(a) A new level of healthcare organisation will be introduced: CCGs which are more local like that 
in north Cumbria will be taken over by a Cumbria and North Eastern ICS ( which I think stands for 
integrated care system). This will mean more centralisation into somewhere in the north east 
which will be in control of health in North Cumbria. 

(b) Retention and recruitment of medical staff: overseas nurses and doctors.  50% of GP posts in 
the west are vacant. One member recommended the adoption of Walk in Centres which he said 
do a great job in London. I urged caution as these could destabilise GP practices, if not 
introduced without proper consultation with the Local Medical Committee.

(c) Building new hospitals. 

(d) I asked that the ambulance situation in Alston Moor be examined by the committee. The 
committee plan to ask NWAS to attend the next meeting in October. 



2. South Cumbria Update: Kate Maynard (KM), Morecambe Bay Hospitals. 



There have been very few Covid patients in critical care over the past few months, thanks to 
vaccination. In the last three weeks there has been a big increase in cases. There are now 40 
Covid patients in the local hospitals. Half have had the two vaccinations, a quarter have had one 
and a quarter had none.  Most were admitted for other reasons and were found to have Covid 
after admission. The hospitals have been trying to catch up with routine cases but have been 
held back by increasing Covid. The hospitals have been very full with 100% bed occupancy. 
There is a plan to expand the bed base. Staff sickness and self isolation have caused an 
increased absence rate at 8% which has caused difficulties.  If critical care demand increases 
this will reduce elective care. The over one year waiting time which contained 2,500 patients had 
recently been reduced to 1,300. Staff double vaccination is at 90%, the public is at 65%. Of 40 
Covid patients, one is now being ventilated. 

Mark Wilson said that there had been some anti-vaccination protesters out in Ulverston.  He is a 
vaccine champion and the local council had agreed that the vaccination rate needed to be 
improved. KM said that the CCG were leading on vaccination and they were talking about going 
into hotels to support the hospitality industry. The age profile in this wave of Covid is younger 
than previous waves. Another councillor asked about whether the virtual consultation would 
become standard in the future. KM said that patients will be asked whether they are happy to 
have phone appointments. If not, a face to face appointment would be arranged. David from 
Health Watch Cumbria said they had conducted a survey and most patients were comfortable 
with virtual consultations, there was less travel and things could be dealt with quicker. 



3. North Cumbria Secondary Care: Peter Rooney. 



The picture in the north of Cumbria is similar. Peter thanked Claire Driver for being the chair of 
this committee for the last few years. She has been a great ally of the NHS plus her local 
population. As of the 16th of July, the R rate has been between 1.2 and 1.4. Cases have been 

Page  33

Agenda Item 9



rising. The rate in the Northeast has been higher. The case rate for Cumbria per 100k last week 
was 403, 339 for England. The previous week it was 240. The peak will probably be higher than 
in January. The vaccine is highly effective at preventing severe disease though it does not 
prevent severe disease in everyone. 

There have been a small number of deaths. It will probably reduce long Covid. Patients are now 
coming forward with non-Covid illnesses and they are more ill due to the delay. A/E is very busy. 
There have been increased mental health referrals due to isolation. There has been disruption in 
mental health in-patient facilities. 87% of North Cumbrians have had the first vaccine and 72% 
have had both. The same stats for London are 65% and 43%. This is higher than most other 
areas. Cumbria is not behind and never has been. There will be a booster in the Autumn/Winter 
around the flu vaccination. It is not known whether they will be given at the same time. 

There are about 20 patients with Covid in hospital, most were admitted for other reasons. Peter 
did not think there were any patients in ICU with Covid. There has not been much anti-vaccine 
activity in Cumbria and it has mostly been families sharing anti-vacc sites. The press and large 
employers have been pushing positive information about the vaccine. 



4. New Hospital Programme: Jerry Hawker, Executive director of Lancashire and South Cumbria 
New Hospitals Programme 



£3.8 billion has been set aside to build 40 new hospitals.  No decisions have been made yet. In 
building the hospitals of the future, a strong focus on digital technology and environmental 
friendliness is made, to deliver better outcomes. There is a need to make hospitals more 
attractive so that more indigenous people come to work there rather than those from overseas.  
There is also a need to involve local companies in construction. The two main sites are Lancaster 
and Preston. There will be investment in Barrow. Furness General is in better condition than the 
other two, which were designed in the 1950s. The hospital facilities are not in a good condition. 
Most have big wards. In the future 79% of patients will be in single rooms. I asked whether there 
will be a computerised record system rather than paper notes. This is being developed 
separately. There used to be four different IT systems in the area and this has been reduced to 
one. In England there are eight new hospitals in the pipeline in the first tranche, Lancashire and 
South Cumbria will be in second tranche and building should start no later than 2025. 



5. CQC Action Plan for NCIC (Cumberland Infirmary): Jill Forster, NCIC



The Care Quality Commission made an unannounced visit to CIC A/E dept in August 2020. A 
warning notice to improve immediately was given. There were 51 must do actions. All these 
actions have been started. Discharges have been improved. Mental health care and Deprivation 
of Liberty procedure has been improved. Records have been reviewed. Electronic patient records 
has been implemented. The staff appraisal system has been improved. There is an international 
nurse recruitment programme. I asked about the reputation that CIC has with patients, a lot of 
patients prefer to be referred to the Northeast for outpatient appointments and often reluctantly 
accept admission to CIC because there is no alternative. Jill said that she is aware of the 
reputation and has been working with staff to improve their behaviour when communicating with 
patients and external medical professionals such as GPs. 



6. North Cumbria Stroke Service: Dr Paul Davis. 



All acute strokes in North Cumbria now go to CIC ( none to West Cumberland Hospital). Due to 
the need to provide a 24 hour service, this had to happen. The HASU (Hyper Acute Stroke Unit) 
was built and opened in 2019. There is a consultant ward round every day. When Covid started 

Page  34



there was a big drop in numbers. Over the last year there has been about 1000 admissions, 600 
of which were strokes. The unit is in the top 25% for quality in the country. In 2019 it could take 
up to 19 hours to get treatment for stroke from the time the patient arrived at the hospital. This is  
now down to 3-4 hours. 90% are due to a blocked artery and 10% due to bleeds in the brain. A 
scan is needed to make this distinction. If it us a clot, then the treatment is thrombolysis. Often 
the patient can be scanned and onto the ward within 30 minutes of arrival. 59% go home after 
three days, others go to the rehab ward. Mechanical removal of clots from the brain arteries can 
be very effective and is carried out in Newcastle. Currently the emphasis is on early discharge as 
the patient will do better in their home environment.  Continued occupational therapy is needed 
at home which is provided by the Early Supported Stroke Discharge Team. There are three 
teams, one for Eden Valley based in Penrith. There us no team for the Allerdale area. 



7. Community Hospital Bed Review (South Cumbria and Lancashire). 



There are three sites: Langdale Unit at West Moreland General, Millom Hospital and Abbey View 
in Furness General. The Langdale Unit was closed at the beginning of the  pandemic. There was 
an opportunity to test different ways of working: community teams with advanced medical 
practitioners coordinating care and diagnostics in the patient’s home. Most patients want to be 
looked after locally and not in the general hospital.  

 

Page  35



This page is intentionally left blank





Health and Wellbeing Forum 20 May 2021



Chair: Judith Derbyshire (EDC), Hilary Snell (Penrith Council), Cathryn Beckett (Public Health), 
Michael Hanley (EDC), 

Phil Dew (EDC).




Current Covid Situation
1.
Cathryn Beckett (CB) gave a report. There has been 5 cases over the last week. There has been 
just short of 3000 cases during the whole pandemic. The rates are below regional and national 
averages. The biggest increase has been in the 12-18 year group. There has been no new cases 
in the 60-80 year old group, but five in the over 80s, following two weeks of none. There have 
been

no Covid deaths in Cumbria recently. There is still concern about the Indian variant. There have 
been no admissions to hospital with Covid in the last week. 

Vaccination has been shown to reduce household transmission by 50%. Now, all over 34 year 
olds are eligible. The Auction Mart at Penrith is the new vaccination centre. People can book a 
vaccination by going on the national vaccination website. 75% of the population of Eden have 
had at least one vaccination. 

Free lateral flow coronovirus tests are available now to those in the hospitality industry. 

I discussed the provision of vaccines to patients at Alston Medical Practice. We have vaccinated 
over 1000 of the population (including second vaccinations), but unfortunately we will not be able 
to continue, as the PCN (Primary Care Network)  has decided to hand over vaccinations to the 
new vaccination centre in Penrith. The PCN is the Eden group of the ten local GP practices. 



2. Mental Health

Mike Conefry from Public Health, South Cumbria gave a presentation on “Population Mental 
Wellbeing and Mental Health and the Covid Pandemic”. The primary focus of this was Mental 
Health Wellbeing. We are moving from management to the recovery of the pandemic. Many 
people have experienced loss. Most will move to a position of acceptance. The psychological 
journey through this is normal and we need to avoid medicalising it. There is community 
resilience with support for people from those around them.  Most people will not choose to seek 
formal help. Most of these people will have a low level of anxiety. 20% have a more complicated 
illness and may need support. 

 Inequalities are exacerbated by disaster. There are different types of communities: geographical, 
ethnic, sexual identity and those of circumstance. Things should be done with, rather than for 
communities. If people are brought together, a connected community is a resilient one. 

The NHS workforce is at risk of burnout, anxiety, PTSD and compassion fatigue. 

There was no increase in suicides during the pandemic, in fact there was in reduction during the 
lockdowns, but an increase when lockdown was lifted. There is a plan to increase on-line support 
for young people through webinars. It is also intended that “Places to Talk” will be organised, to 
enable people to come together to talk about their experience of the pandemic. Key elements will 
be a short film of local experience of the pandemic, a resource pack for local leaders to run local 
sessions and a small grant to cover costs of running sessions for local groups. 



3. Social Isolation. 

Anna Sives from the PCN was due to present this but she could not attend. The PCN will be 
looking into this by assessing patients and helping those who are socially isolated by getting 
them involved with the social prescribers, Fit for All and Adult Social Care. Also the Befriending 
Service will be involved. The local communities will also be encouraged to be involved. 


Page  37



 

Page  38



Eden Health and Wellbeing Forum 22 July 2021



Present: Judith Derbyshire (chair, EDC councillor), Cathryn Beckett (Public Health Lead), Oliver 
Carswell ( Active Cumbria,Development Officer, CCC), Louise Jeffrey ( Eden Housing), Dani Leslie 
( Eden Carers), Elizabeth Walker (Adult Education), Hilary Snell (Penrith Town Councillor, Eden 
Patient Participation Groups), Amy Frith ( (Community Development Assistant), Phil Dew( EDC 
and CCC councillor), Doug Huggon ( Leisure Dept, EDC), Lissie Sharp (EDC councillor), Elizabeth 
Walker( CLAS, Community Learning and Skills), Michael Hanley (EDC councillor)



report by Michael Hanley. 




Covid Update: Cathryn Beckett.
1.


There has been a huge increase in Covid cases. Yesterday there were 169 new cases (317/100k). 
At the time of the previous meeting there were just 5 cases over the previous week. There were 
3300 new cases last week, that was an increase of 64% over the previous week. Carlisle had the 
largest increase, above regional and national averages. 12-18 and 18-39 year olds had the 
greatest increase. 87% are under 50, 6 times higher than the over 50 age group. There was an 
increase in Covid hospital admissions last week. As of the 18th of July there were no Covid 
deaths. Vaccination reduces household admission by 50%, 91% of the eligible population has 
received the first vaccine (93% in Eden). The second vaccine should not be given later  than 8 
weeks after the first. There are particularly low vaccination rates in younger people. 

From the 19th of July, there are no limits on social distancing and face coverings are no longer 
required. Night clubs can reopen. There are no restrictions on communal worship. Limits on visits 
to care homes will be removed. 



2. Tackling Inequalities: Cathryn Beckett.



There is a priority to reduce loneliness and isolation. There is national guidance. Some rural 
communities are quite resilient. There are many people in Penrith who are experiencing isolation 
and loneliness. Anna Sives, from the Primary Care Network (Eden network of GP practices), has 
been working with patients who are socially isolated. Social prescribers have been working with 
these patients. They are looking to art and culture. Fit for All has also been useful. A lot of these 
are just restarting again after the pandemic period. Sport England has developed an inequality 
fund. No group in Eden has applied for this yet. Many groups in Barrow have received financial 
help. Elizabeth Walker said that tutors are being trained to go into schools. The aim is to get 
children more active (focusing on the the non-sporty ones). 



3. Improving Lives with Physical Activity: Oliver Carswell. 



There is a five year plan to increase physical activity. This will improve well being, mental well 
being, social and community development, children and young people.  Increased physical 
activity reduces cognitive decline by 40%, reduces diabetes by 35%, reduces high blood 
pressure by 33%, reduces depression by 48%, reduces overall mortality by 30%, reduces 
fractures by 66%, reduces breast cancer by 20% and reduces coronary artery disease by 20%. 
Active Cumbria is part of a national team and is hosted by CCC. There are 14 staff. The cost of 
physical inactivity in Eden is about 1 million pounds per year. In Eden, 22% of children, 4-5 year 
olds,  are obese, 31% of 10-11 year olds. 60% of over 18 year old adults are obese. The priority 
is to support children in the early years and support older adults to be more active. Key areas 
are: Penrith South and North, Pategill, Greystoke and Brough. Alston was a priority in the past, its 

Page  39



no longer in the top 20 in Cumbria. Oliver has worked in SKS and schools in Kirkby Stephen and 
Appleby. Walking for Health which is (now called Ramblers) has helped. Elizabeth Walker said 
that they do a course: “Eating healthily on a budget”. We discussed the recent deaths by 
drowning in Cumbria. There are children who cannot swim, despite it being a requirement that all 
children should be able to swim 20 metres by the end if primary school. Doug Huggon said it 
would be good to identify these children to provide funding to help them to learn to swim. 


















Page  40


	Agenda
	7 Performance Report - Quarter 1, 1 April  - 30 June 2021
	Appendix A Q1 21 22- Corporate Plan Dashboard
	Appendix B- Key Performance Indicators
	Appendix C- Corporate Risk Map

	8 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme
	9 Local Health Scrutiny
	Health and Wellbeing Forum
	Eden H+WB Forum


